
          

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SOUTH BAY 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 13, 2022 
1:00 P.M. 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.sbaycdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 

www.sbaycdd.org


 

 
 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

AGENDA 
SOUTH BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Sunset Grill and Beach Bar 
602 Bahia Del Sol Drive 
Ruskin, Florida 33570 

Conference Call 1-888-278-0296 Access Code 8308397 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

May 13, 2022 
1:00 P.M. 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………........Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Approval of Minutes 

1. March 11, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes…………………………..................................Page 2 

F. Old Business 

G. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Parking Information……………………………………………………...Page 6 

2. Discussion Regarding POA Adding Street Lights 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2022-01 – Numbering & Labelling District Board Seats for Ease 
of Future Elections……………………………………………………………………………….Page 32 

H. Reports 
1. Manager’s Report 

a. Financial Report…………………………………………………………………………....Page 34 

2. Legal Report 

3. Engineer’s Report 

4. Chairman’s Report 

5. POA Report 

6. Bond Holder’s Report 

7. Landowner’s Report 

a. Update on Antigua Cove Phase IIIB 

b. Update on Status of Forcemain Construction 

I. Administrative Matters 

J. Comments by the Public for Matters not on the Agenda 

K. Board Members Comments 

L. Adjourn 



Page 1



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
  

 
  

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

SOUTH BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 11, 2022 
Due to COVID restrictions, masks and social distancing was required. 

Audience participation was encouraged via conference call at: 
1-888-278-0296 Access Code 8308397 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

The March 11, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the South Bay Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 1:05 p.m. at the Sunset Grill and Beach Bar located at 602 Bahia del 
Sol Drive, Ruskin, Florida 33570. 

B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 

Proof of publication was presented that indicated Notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Tampa Bay Times on September 29, 2021, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2021/2022 
Meeting Schedule, as legally required. 

C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 

It was determined that the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and was in order for the meeting 
to commence: 

Chairman W. Thomas Grimm Present 

Vice Chairman Brett Vogeler Present 

Supervisor Kelly Evans (via phone) Present 

Supervisor Leah Popelka Present 

Supervisor Robert McCarthy  (via phone) Present 

The following staff were in attendance: 

District Manager William Crosley Special District Services, Inc. 
General Counsel Tom Cloud Gray-Robinson 
District Engineer Rick Brylanski Hole Montes, Inc. 

D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. February 11, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 

The February 11, 2022, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for consideration. 

Page 1 of 4 

Page 2



 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

A motion was made by Ms. Popelka, seconded by Mr. Vogeler and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the February 11, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 

F. OLD BUSINESS 
1. Update Regarding Seawall Easement Agreement 

There was no update on this item at this time. 

2. Update Regarding Dock Facilities Declaration 

There was no update on this matter at this time. 

G. NEW BUSINESS 

There were no New Business items to come before the Board. 

H. REPORTS 
1. Manager’s Report 

a. Financial Report 

Mr. Crosley presented the financial report. After discussion, it was determined that the proceeds from 
the Riverton parcel sale would be moved to maintenance reserves and would be reflected on the next 
financial report. 

2. Legal Report 

Mr. Cloud reported that David Smith had contacted the new owner of the marinas in regard to the lawsuit 
that the previous owner had filed against the District.  Suntex is the new owner of the marinas.  Spencer 
Dunford is the Business Manager in Florida and Georgia for Suntex.  Suntex believes they have obtained 
any and all rights with respect to the current litigation.  There will be ongoing communication with 
District Counsel regarding this matter.  Suntex has been advised that there will be an overall assessment 
regime evaluation by the CDD Board in order to determine whether any changes in development or uses 
would require a change in the methodology.  In addition, Suntex was advised that it would be helpful if 
they were to become involved in that process and provide input on the assessment methodology.  A 
shade session will be scheduled in order to discuss litigation strategy and expenditures and will follow 
the next Regular Board Meeting in the event there are any updates.  

3. Engineer’s Report 

Mr. Brylanski reported that MRI Inc. had completed the storm sewer maintenance within the District 
roadways. A pay request will be submitted to fulfill the contract.  Inspection of these areas is 
recommended every two years and maintenance, as needed.  There are additional areas that were not 
included in the scope that are owned by private entities.  Antigua Cove did not receive maintenance 
because that area is still under construction.  There are some small items that will be completed to finalize 
the road rehabilitation project, such as signage and road striping.  There are some additional items, such 
as potential crosswalks and uniformity of signage throughout the District right-of-ways that will be 
looked at and a proposal will be provided.     

4. Chairman’s Report 
Page 2 of 4 

Page 3



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
  
  
 

 
   
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 

There was no Chairman’s Report at this time. 

5. POA Report 

Kent Wanninger POA President, reported that there was a 6% increase requested from the current 
security company. In addition, the POA has an agreement with Last Call Towing Company, which is 
being updated to reflect those representatives who are authorized to call for a vehicle to be towed that is 
improperly parked. Towing is permitted pursuant to the resolution guidelines passed by the District 
Board and Florida Statutes. A Paid Parking Committee was formed by the POA to look into possible 
parking solutions that would be provided to the POA board and if endorsed, then it will go to the District 
Board. 

6. Bondholder’s Report 

There was no Bondholder’s Report at this time. 

7. Landowners’ Report 
a. Update on Antigua Cove Phase IIIB 

There was no update on this item at this time. 

b. Status of Forcemain Construction 

There was no update on this item at this time. 

I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

Mr. Crosley announced the Landowners’ Meeting would be held on November 11, 2022.  Supervisors 
Vogeler, Popelka, and McCarthy seat terms expire in November 2022.  Supervisors Grimm and Evans 
seats expire in 2024. Pursuant to Enjoli White, Candidate Services’ Manager representing Craig Latimer, 
Hillsborough County Supervisor of Elections, the State needs to certify the seats up for election in 
February 2022 using the number of qualified electors as of April 15, 2021.  At that time there were not 
the required 250 qualified electors in the District, which would have prompted the three seats expiring 
this year to go to the General Election.  Because those seats will not be decided in the General Election, 
they will be decided at the Landowners’ Meeting on November 11, 2022.  

J. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

Mr. Brown thanked the Board for cleaning up the debris that was dumped from the storm sewer 
maintenance.  There was a comment some maintenance was necessary on osprey nests that needed to be 
addressed.  The POA, as the maintenance provider to the District, is responsible to look into this matter. 

K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

There were no further comments from the Board Members. 

L. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 3 of 4 

Page 4



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

_________________________________ __________________________________ 

There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Vogeler, seconded 
by Ms. Popelka to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 2:12 p.m. That motion passed unanimously. 

Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 4 of 4 

Page 5



 

 

  
   

   
 

  

 
  

    

  

 

  

 
  

 
 

  
   

March 22, 2022 

Glenn Patton 
Little Harbor POA 
235 Apollo Beach Blvd 
#417 
Apollo Beach, FL 33572 

Re: Little Harbor Parking Management System 

Dear Mr. Patton, 

Thank you for allowing me to present this proposal for parking management services for the Little 
Harbor POA.  After the call with your board and our review your location, we are confident that PAVE 
Mobility’s comprehensive plan will provide many benefits to your association and turn your parking 
issues into a well-regulated parking system with surplus parking revenue. 

Based on our review and the information provided, we have developed the following proposal for your 
consideration: 

Equipment and Installation 
PAVE Mobility will install state of the art digital cameras, conduit, wiring, computers, network system 
and wireless connection devices entirely at our cost.  We anticipate a numerous cameras installed to 
cover multiple entrances and exits at multiple facilities.  A detailed site map with camera locations, 
conduit routes and the location of our devices will be provided for owner’s approval prior to the 
installation.  

Signage 
PAVE will develop a professional sign package to include the location, type and wording of all the signs 
necessary to regulate parking on the premises.  This signage package will explain the parking rules, 
regulations, rates, payment options and will include our legal disclaimer for non-compliance. 

Payment Permits and Validations 
PAVE Mobility will provide a comprehensive payment platform including a payment app, permit system 
and validation process to collect payments and identify authorized vehicles based upon POA established 
rates and permissions.  This system will be implemented at no cost to the POA. 

LPR Software and Parking Charge Notices 
PAVE Mobility will provide our proprietary License Plate Recognition (LPR) System to reconcile the 
parking sessions identified with our LPR parking management system and the payments, permits and 
validation generated for the same period.  Our system will automatically detect vehicles who have not 
paid or have overstayed their paid session.  PAVE will manually review each violation detected to ensure 
accuracy.  The system will gather the appropriate address and send a Parking Charge Notice (PCN) by 

Page 6



 
 

 
  

 
 

  
  

 
   

 

 
 

 

mail. This is done at PAVE’s expense and in full compliance with all local and state ordinances. We 
suggest a PCN rate of $85 reduced to $45 if paid within 15 days of the notice date.  

PCN Management and Revenue Collection 
PAVE’s dedicated customer service team answers customer queries, resolves disputes and handles 
customer interactions during regular business hours, Monday-Friday.  We collect parking charge notice 
revenue via our user-friendly payment site and US Mail. Your staff is provided access to a convenient 
dashboard with real time transient parking payment data, PCN’s issuance data and PCN revenue 
collection data.  

Financial Proposal 
PAVE will provide everything detailed herein with zero cost to the POA.  PAVE will collect and retain 15% 
of transient parking revenue and remit to the Owner 85% of all transient parking by the 10th of each 
calendar month for the previous month’s collections.  PAVE will remit $15 for every paid Parking Charge 
Notice to the Owner by the 10th of each calendar month for the previous month’s collections. 

Again, thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal.  We are available to discuss this in further 
detail or answer any questions you may have at your convenience.  Please do not hesitate to contact 
me. 

Sincerely, 

Fred Bredemeyer 
PAVE Mobility 
PaveMobility.com 

PAVE Mobility 
1815 Griffin Road, Suite 403 ∙ Dania Beach, FL 33004 

PaveMobility.com 

Page 7

https://PaveMobility.com
https://PaveMobility.com


Page 8



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We mean that 
the coupling of AI 
+ human 
verification 
ensures that 
parking charge 
notices are 
issued 
accurately, every 
single time. 

We mean you 
keep your 5-star 
reviews because 
we take the bad 
ones. 

We mean that 
you’ll no 
longer have to 
confront 
violators. 

We mean that our 
technology, when 
matched with 
human 
verification, means 
100% accuracy 
every single time. 

We mean we 
ease you of the 
burden of having 
to deal with 
disputes. 

We mean no 
more staffing 
or legal 
pains. 

Page 9



Page 10



PAVE Mobility 
Lets You: 

Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

EFFECTIVE. 
Violators 
won’t “risk it” 
within a 
system that 
catches 98% 
of violations. 

REVENUE-
GENERATING. 

Parking 
charge 
notices bring 
you more 
revenue. 

CONVENIENT. 

No on-site 
confrontation 
+ less punitive 
measures than 
traditional 
towing/bootin 
g = happier 
customers 

COST-
EFFECTIVE. 

No more 
parking 
patrol. Less 
burden on 
your 
employees. 

INSIGHTFUL. 

Our software 
provides you 
with 
actionable 
data like 
average stay, 
peak times, 
and parking lot 
occupancy. 

Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



ProfessionalParkingMgt.com

Fred Bredemeyer 

Direct Line: 954.294.7595 Direct Line: 954.294.7595 

Florida Office: 954.822.5658 Florida Office: 954.822.5658 

Georgia Line: 404.692.4362 Georgia Line: 404.692.4362 

Office: 844.999.7275 Office: 844.999.7275 

PaveMobility.com 

Page 31



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION 2022-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SOUTH BAY 
COMMUNITY DISTRICT NUMBERING & LABELLING DISTRICT BOARD SEATS 
FOR EASE OF FUTURE ELECTIONS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the South Bay Community Development District (“District”) is a local 
unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Ordinance No. 04-
17, as amended, being situated entirely within Hillsborough County, Florida; and, 

WHEREAS, the Hillsborough County Supervisor of Elections has requested that 
the Board of Supervisors of the District (“Board”) provide a list of office holders; and, 

WHEREAS, the number of registered voters will soon trigger the requirement to 
hold elections; and, 

WHEREAS, to facilitate these elections, the Board has determined to number 
and label each seat of the board. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE SOUTH BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

Section 1. The Board hereby numbers its board seats as Seats 1 through 5, 
allocating such numbers as follows: 

Chairman W. Thomas Grimm’s seat shall be hereafter numbered and labelled 
Seat No. 1, expiring November 2024. 

Vice Chairman Brett Vogeler’s seat shall be hereafter numbered and labelled 
Seat No. 2, expiring November 2022. 

Supervisor Kelly Evans’ seat shall be hereafter numbered and labelled Seat No. 
3, expiring November 2024. 

Supervisor Leah Popelka’s seat shall be hereafter numbered and labelled Seat 
No. 4, expiring November 2022. 

The late Supervisor Robert McCarthy’s seat shall be hereafter numbered and 
labelled Seat No. 5, expiring November 2022. 

Section 2.  . If any portion or portions of this Resolution are declared to be 
invalid, the remaining portions shall have the same force and effect as though such 
invalid portion or portions had not been included.   

1 

Page 32



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
           

  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Section 3.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 
adoption. 

PASSED, ADOPTED, AND EFFECTIVE THIS 13th DAY OF MAY, 2020. 

ATTEST: SOUTH BAY COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By:___________________   By:_________________________ 
     Secretary/Assistant Secretary      Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

APPROVED AS TO FORM & LEGALITY: 

By:_______________________ 
District Counsel 

2 

Page 33



 South Bay 
Community Development District

 Financial Report For 
March 2022 

Page 34



 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

 
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

      

 
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

      

      

      

         

      

         
         

       

     

        

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

  

  

   

  

  

  

Page 35



  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

   

  

 

  

 

   

 

   

 

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

Page 36



  

 
 

     

 

     

     

  

 

     

  

 

     

  

 

     

  

 

     

  

  

Page 37



 

 
 

       

 

 

 

        

        

        

 

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

Page 38



 

 
 

       

 

 

 

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

 

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

 

        

        

        

        

        

        

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 39


	South Bay Community Development District - May 13, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	March 11, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Discussion Regarding Parking Information
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-01 – Numbering & Labelling District Board Seats for Ease of Future Elections
	Financial Report




